

## TWENTY-SEVENTH DAY

St. Paul, Minnesota, Monday, March 30, 1981

The Senate met at 11:00 a.m. and was called to order by the President.

Prayer was offered by the Chaplain, Rev. Laurits C. Nielsen.

The roll was called, and the following Senators answered to their names:

Ashbach	Dicklich	Kronebusch	Penny	Sikorski
Bang	Dieterich	Langseth	Peterson, C.C.	Solon
Belanger	Engler	Lantry	Peterson, D.L.	Spear
Benson	Frank	Lessard	Peterson, R.W.	Stern
Berg	Frederick	Lindgren	Petty	Stokowski
Berglin	Frederickson	Luther	Pillsbury	Stumpf
Bernhagen	Hanson	Menning	Purfeerst	Taylor
Bertram	Hughes	Merriam	Ramstad	Tennesen
Brataas	Humphrey	Moe, D.M.	Renneke	Ulland
Chmielewski	Johnson	Moe, R.D.	Rued	Vega
Dahl	Keefe	Nelson	Schmitz	Waldorf
Davies	Knoll	Olhoft	Setzepfandt	Wegener
Davis	Kroening	Pehler	Sietoff	Willet

The President declared a quorum present.

The reading of the Journal was dispensed with and the Journal, as printed and corrected, was approved.

## EXECUTIVE AND OFFICIAL COMMUNICATIONS

March 20, 1981

The Honorable Harry A. Sieben, Jr.  
Speaker of the House of Representatives

The Honorable Jack Davies  
President of the Senate

I have the honor to inform you that the following enrolled Acts of the 1981 Session of the State Legislature have been received from the Office of the Governor and are deposited in the Office of the Secretary of State for preservation, pursuant to the State Constitution, Article IV, Section 23:

27TH DAY]

MONDAY, MARCH 30, 1981

519

S.F. No.	H.F. No.	Session Laws Chapter No.	Date Approved 1981	Date Filed 1981
92		6	March 20	March 20
144		7	March 20	March 20

Sincerely,

Joan Anderson Growe  
Secretary of State

March 25, 1981

The Honorable Jack Davies  
President of the Senate

Dear Sir:

I have the honor of informing you that I have received, approved, signed and deposited in the Office of the Secretary of State, S. F. Nos. 12 and 13.

Sincerely yours,

Albert H. Quie, Governor

March 25, 1981

The Honorable Harry A. Sieben, Jr.  
Speaker of the House of Representatives

The Honorable Jack Davies  
President of the Senate

I have the honor to inform you that the following enrolled Acts of the 1981 Session of the State Legislature have been received from the Office of the Governor and are deposited in the Office of the Secretary of State for preservation, pursuant to the State Constitution, Article IV, Section 23:

S.F. No.	H.F. No.	Session Laws Chapter No.	Date Approved 1981	Date Filed 1981
12		8	March 25	March 25
13		9	March 25	March 25

Sincerely,

Joan Anderson Growe  
Secretary of State

March 27, 1981

The Honorable Jack Davies  
President of the Senate

Dear Sir:

I have the honor of informing you that I have received, approved, signed and deposited in the Office of the Secretary of State, S. F. Nos. 175 and 97.

Sincerely yours,

Albert H. Quie, Governor

**MESSAGES FROM THE HOUSE**

Mr. President:

I have the honor to announce the passage by the House of the following Senate Files, herewith returned: S. F. Nos. 30 and 620.

Edward A. Burdick, Chief Clerk, House of Representatives

Returned March 26, 1981

Mr. President:

I have the honor to announce the passage by the House of the following Senate File, AS AMENDED by the House, in which amendments the concurrence of the Senate is respectfully requested:

S. F. No. 121: A bill for an act relating to statutory cities and urban towns; permitting publication of summaries of ordinances prior to enactment; amending Minnesota Statutes 1980, Sections 368.01, Subdivision 21; and 412.191, Subdivision 4.

Senate File No. 121 is herewith returned to the Senate.

Edward A. Burdick, Chief Clerk, House of Representatives

Returned March 26, 1981

Mr. Wegener moved that the Senate do not concur in the amendments by the House to S. F. No. 121, and that a Conference Committee of 3 members be appointed by the Subcommittee on Committees on the part of the Senate, to act with a like Conference Committee to be appointed on the part of the House. The motion prevailed.

Mr. President:

I have the honor to announce that the House has adopted the recommendation and report of the Conference Committee on Senate File No. 366 and repassed said bill in accordance with the report of the Committee, so adopted.

S. F. No. 366: A bill for an act relating to taxation; providing a new schedule for payment of income taxes withheld from wages; giving temporary rulemaking authority; appropriating money; amending Minnesota Statutes 1980, Section 290.92, Subdivision 6.

Senate File No. 366 is herewith returned to the Senate.

Edward A. Burdick, Chief Clerk, House of Representatives

Returned March 26, 1981

Mr. President:

I have the honor to announce the passage by the House of the following House Files, herewith transmitted: H. F. Nos. 98, 258, 509, 349 and 435.

Edward A. Burdick, Chief Clerk, House of Representatives

Transmitted March 26, 1981

**FIRST READING OF HOUSE BILLS**

The following bills were read the first time and referred to the committees indicated.

H. F. No. 98: A bill for an act relating to energy; amending certain provisions for home energy disclosure reports; amending Minnesota Statutes 1980, Section 116H.129, Subdivisions 1, 2, 5, 6, and 7.

Referred to the Committee on Energy and Housing.

H. F. No. 258: A bill for an act relating to commerce; allowing the manufacture, sale, and shipment of gambling devices for use in other states; amending Minnesota Statutes 1980, Sections 349.31, Subdivision 1; 609.75, Subdivision 1; 609.76; proposing new law coded in Minnesota Statutes, Chapter 349.

Referred to the Committee on Commerce.

H. F. No. 509: A bill for an act relating to commerce; requiring disclosure in motor vehicle transactions; proposing new law coded in Minnesota Statutes, Chapter 168.

Referred to the Committee on Commerce.

H. F. No. 349: A bill for an act relating to agriculture; regulating livestock marketing; providing a penalty; amending Minnesota Statutes 1980, Sections 17A.02; 17A.03, Subdivision 7; 17A.14; proposing new law coded in Minnesota Statutes, Chapter 17A.

Referred to the Committee on Rules and Administration for comparison with S. F. No. 494, now on General Orders.

H. F. No. 435: A bill for an act relating to taxation; income; property tax refund; adopting certain federal income tax amendments; amending Minnesota Statutes 1980, Sections 290.01, Subdivision 20; 290.06, Subdivision 14; 290.07, Subdivision 5; 290.077, Subdivision 4; 290.08, Subdivisions 8 and 20; 290.09, Subdivisions 3, 4, 17a, and 19; 290.091; 290.131, Subdivision 2; 290.132, Subdivision 2; 290.135, Subdivision 2; 290.136, Subdivision 1; 290.138, by adding a subdivision; 290.26, Subdivision 2; 290.31, Subdivision 3; 290.41, by adding subdivisions; 290.92, Subdivision 20; 290.934, Subdivision 4; 290.971, by adding a subdivision; 290A.03, Subdivision 3; 474.12, Subdivision 2; and Laws 1980, Chapter 607, Article I, Section 34; repealing Minnesota Statutes 1980, Sections 290.08, Subdivisions 7 and 13; 290.09, Subdivision 12; 290.136, Subdivisions 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, 7, and 9; 290.137, and 290.138, Subdivisions 1 and 2.

Referred to the Committee on Taxes and Tax Laws.

### REPORTS OF COMMITTEES

Mr. Moe, R.D. moved that the Committee Reports at the Desk be now adopted. The motion prevailed.

Mr. Davies from the Committee on Judiciary, to which was referred

S. F. No. 625: A bill for an act relating to landlords and tenants; permitting certain actions in unlawful detainer to be done by nonattorneys; amending Minnesota Statutes 1980, Section 481.02, Subdivision 3.

Reports the same back with the recommendation that the bill be amended as follows:

Delete everything after the enacting clause and insert:

"Section 1. Minnesota Statutes 1980, Section 481.02, Subdivision 3, is amended to read:

Subd. 3. ~~[WHAT PERMITTED ACTIONS.]~~ The ~~foregoing~~ provisions of this section shall not prohibit:

(1) any one from drawing, without charge ~~for so doing~~, any document to which he, ~~or~~ a person whose employee he is ~~or~~, a firm whereof he is a member, or a corporation whose officer or employee he is, is a party, except another's will or testamentary disposition or instrument of trust serving purposes similar to those of a will; ~~and shall not prohibit~~

(2) a person from drawing a will for another in an emergency wherein the imminence of death leaves insufficient time to have ~~the same~~ it drawn and its execution supervised by a licensed attorney at law; ~~and shall not prohibit~~

(3) any one, acting as broker for the parties or agent of one of the parties to a sale or trade or lease of property or to a loan, from drawing or assisting in drawing, with or without charge ~~therefor~~, such papers as ~~may be~~ incident to ~~such the~~ sale, trade, lease, or loan; ~~and shall not prohibit~~

(4) any insurance company from causing to be defended, or from offering to cause to be defended through lawyers of its selection, the insureds in policies issued or to be issued by it, in accordance with the terms of ~~such the~~ policies; ~~and shall not prohibit one such~~

(5) a licensed attorney at law from acting for several common-carrier corporations or any of its subsidiaries pursuant to arrangement between ~~said the~~ corporations; ~~and shall not prohibit~~

(6) any bona fide labor organization from giving legal advice to its members in matters arising out of their employment; ~~and shall not prohibit~~

(7) any person from conferring or cooperating with a licensed attorney at law of another in preparing any legal document, if ~~such the~~ attorney is not, directly or indirectly, in the employ of ~~such the~~ person or of any person, firm, or corporation represented by ~~such the~~ person; ~~and shall not prohibit~~

(8) any licensed attorney at law of Minnesota, who is an officer or employee of a corporation, from drawing, for or without compensation, any document to which the corporation is a party or wherein it is interested personally or in a representative capacity, except wills or testamentary dispositions or instruments of trust serving purposes similar to those of a will, but any charge made for the legal work connected with preparing and drawing ~~such the~~ document shall not exceed the amount paid to and received and retained by ~~such the~~ attorney; and ~~such the~~ attorney shall not, directly or indirectly, rebate the ~~same~~ fee to or divide the ~~same~~ fee with ~~such the~~ corporations; ~~and shall not prohibit~~

(9) any person or corporation from drawing, for or without a fee, farm or house leases, notes, mortgages, chattel mortgages, bills of sale, deeds, assignments; satisfactions or any other conveyances except testamentary dispositions and instruments of trust; ~~and shall not prohibit~~

(10) a licensed attorney at law of Minnesota from rendering to a corporation legal services to itself at the expense of one or more of its bona fide principal stockholders by whom he is employed and by whom no compensation is, directly or indirectly, received for ~~such the~~ services; ~~and shall not prohibit~~

(11) any person or corporation engaged in the business of making collections from engaging or turning over to an attorney at law for the purpose of instituting and conducting suit or making proof of claim of a creditor in any case in which the attorney at law receives the entire compensation for ~~such the work; and shall not prohibit~~

(12) any regularly established farm journal or newspaper, devoted to general news, from publishing a department of legal questions and answers thereto, made by a licensed attorney at law, if no ~~such answer be~~ is accompanied or at any time preceded or followed by any charge for ~~such answer it~~, any disclosure of any name of the maker of any answer, any recommendation of or reference to any one to furnish legal advice or services, or by any legal advice or service for ~~such the~~ periodical or any one connected with it or suggested by it, directly or indirectly;

(13) any authorized management agent of an owner of rental property used for residential purposes, whether the management agent is a natural person, corporation, partnership, limited partnership, or any other business entity, from commencing, maintaining, conducting, or defending in its own behalf any action in any court in this state to recover or retain possession of rental property used for residential purposes; and

(14) any person from commencing, maintaining, conducting, or defending on behalf of the plaintiff or defendant any action commenced in any county or municipal court of this state pursuant to the provisions of sections 566.175 or 566.18 to 566.33 or from commencing, maintaining, conducting, or defending on behalf of the plaintiff or defendant any action commenced in any county or municipal court of this state for the recovery of rental property used for residential purposes pursuant to the provisions of sections 566.02 or 566.03, subdivision 1, except that the provisions of this clause shall not authorize a person who is not a licensed attorney at law to conduct a jury trial or to appear before a district court or the supreme court pursuant to an appeal, and provided that, except for a nonprofit corporation, a person who is not a licensed attorney at law shall not charge or collect a separate fee for services rendered pursuant to this clause.

Sec. 2. Minnesota Statutes 1980, Section 566.05, is amended to read:

566.05 [COMPLAINT AND SUMMONS.]

The person complaining shall file a complaint with a justice of the peace court, describing the premises of which possession is claimed, stating the facts which authorize the recovery, and praying for restitution thereof. The justice court shall thereupon issue a summons, commanding the person against whom ~~such the~~ complaint is made to appear before ~~him the~~ court on a day and at a place stated in ~~such the~~ summons ~~named, which~~. The appearance shall not be less than ~~three~~ seven, nor more than ~~ten~~ 14, days from the day of issuing the ~~same~~ summons. A copy of the complaint shall be attached to the summons, which shall state that it is so attached, and that the original has been filed.

Sec. 3. Minnesota Statutes 1980, Section 566.06, is amended to read:

566.06 [SUMMONS; HOW SERVED.]

The summons shall be served at least ~~three~~ seven days before the return day thereof by delivering a copy to the person against whom it is issued or if ~~such~~

the person ~~be~~ is a corporation, a minor under 14 years of age or a person under guardianship, by delivering a copy as provided in the case of a service of a summons in a civil action in the district court; ~~but~~ . In case ~~such~~ the person cannot be found in the county, the summons may be served on him at least ~~six~~ seven days before ~~the~~ its return day ~~thereof~~, by leaving a copy ~~thereof~~ at his last usual place of abode with a member of his family, or a person of suitable age and discretion residing ~~at such place there~~, or if he had no place of abode, by leaving a copy ~~thereof~~ upon the premises described in the complaint with a person of suitable age and discretion occupying the same or any part thereof. The summons may be served by the sheriff or any constable of the county, by an agent or attorney of any named party to the action, or by any other person not named a party to the action. In case the defendant cannot be found in the county, of which the return of the sheriff or constable, shall be prima facie proof, and further that there is no person actually occupying the premises described in the complaint, then upon the filing of an affidavit by the plaintiff, or his attorney, in the court in which the action is brought stating that he believes the defendant is not in this state, or cannot be found therein, and either that he has mailed a copy of the summons to the defendant at his last known address, or that ~~such~~ the address is not known to him, service of the summons may be made upon ~~such~~ the defendant by posting the summons in a conspicuous place on the premises for not less than one week and if upon the return day the defendant, or his attorney, does not appear in court in the action then the trial thereof shall proceed.

Sec. 4. Minnesota Statutes 1980, Section 566.09, is amended to read:

#### 566.09 [JUDGMENT; FINE; EXECUTION.]

If, ~~upon the trial~~, the justice court or jury ~~find finds~~ for the plaintiff, the justice court shall immediately ~~thereupon~~ enter judgment that the plaintiff have restitution of the premises; and tax the costs for him. The justice court shall issue execution in favor of the plaintiff for ~~such~~ the costs; and also immediately issue a writ of restitution. ~~No stay of the writ of restitution may be granted except upon a showing by the defendant that the restitution would work a substantial hardship upon the defendant. Upon a proper showing by the defendant of substantial hardship, the justice may stay the writ of restitution for a reasonable period not to exceed seven days, except that no stay y of the writ of restitution shall extend later than three days prior to the date the rent is next due. Upon a showing by the defendant that immediate restitution of the premises would work a substantial hardship upon him or his family, the court shall stay the writ of restitution for a reasonable period, not to exceed seven days. If the justice court or jury shall find finds for the defendant, he the court shall enter judgment for the defendant, tax the costs against the plaintiff, and issue execution therefor.~~

#### Sec. 5. [INSTRUCTIONS TO REVISOR.]

*The revisor of statutes shall change the term "justice" or "justice of the peace" to "court" or another appropriate term wherever it appears in chapter 566.*

#### Sec. 6. [EFFECTIVE DATE.]

*This act shall be effective the day following its final enactment."*

Delete the title and insert:

"A bill for an act relating to landlords and tenants; permitting certain tenant remedies actions and certain actions in unlawful detainer to be done by nonattorneys; extending the time between service of the summons in unlawful detainer proceedings and the return day; providing for a stay of the writ of restitution in unlawful detainer proceedings in cases of hardship; changing obsolete terms in certain landlord and tenant statutes; amending Minnesota Statutes 1980, Sections 481.02, Subdivision 3; 566.05; 566.06; and 566.09."

And when so amended the bill do pass. Amendments adopted. Report adopted.

Mr. Davies from the Committee on Judiciary, to which was referred

S. F. No. 154: A bill for an act relating to crimes; authorizing the release of account information to law enforcement authorities investigating the issuance of worthless checks; authorizing the issuance of account information to payee or holders when a check has been dishonored; amending Minnesota Statutes 1980, Section 609.535, by adding subdivisions.

Reports the same back with the recommendation that the bill be amended as follows:

Delete everything after the enacting clause and insert:

"Section 1. Minnesota Statutes 1980, Section 609.535, is amended by adding a subdivision to read:

*Subd. 6. [RELEASE OF ACCOUNT INFORMATION TO LAW ENFORCEMENT AUTHORITIES.] A drawee shall not be liable in a civil or criminal proceeding for releasing to any state, county, or local law enforcement or prosecuting authority which first certifies in writing that it is investigating or prosecuting a complaint against the drawer under this section or section 609.52, subdivision 2, clause (3)(a) any of the following information relating to the drawer's account:*

*(1) Documents relating to the opening of the account by the drawer;*

*(2) Correspondence between the drawer and the drawee relating to the status of the account;*

*(3) Periodic statements mailed to the drawer by the drawee for the periods immediately prior to, during, and subsequent to the issuance of any check or other order for the payment of money which is the subject of the investigation or prosecution; or*

*(4) The last known home and business addresses and telephone numbers of the drawer.*

Sec. 2. Minnesota Statutes 1980, Section 609.535, is amended by adding a subdivision to read:

*Subd. 7. [RELEASE OF ACCOUNT INFORMATION TO PAYEE OR HOLDER.] If there is a written request to a drawee from a payee or holder of a check or other order for the payment of money that has been dishonored other than by a stop payment order, accompanied with a photostatic copy of the dishonored check or other order for payment of money, the drawee shall not be liable in a civil or criminal proceeding for releasing to the payee or holder any of the following information relating to the drawer's account:*



(1) *Whether, at the time the check or other order for payment of money was issued or presented for payment, the drawer had sufficient funds or credit with the drawee, and whether at that time the account was open, closed or restricted for any reason and, if closed, the date of closing; and*

(2) *The last known home and business addresses and telephone numbers of the drawer.*

Sec. 3. Minnesota Statutes 1980, Section 609.535, is amended by adding a subdivision to read:

*Subd. 8. [NOTICE.] The provisions of subdivisions 6 and 7 shall not be applicable unless the notice to the maker or drawer required by subdivision 3 states that if the check or other order for the payment of money is not paid in full within five business days after receipt of the notice, the drawee may release information relating to the issuer's account to the payee or holder of the check or other order for the payment of money and to law enforcement and prosecuting authorities. No person shall be liable for threatening a criminal action to collect a civil obligation solely because of inclusion of the language permitted to be contained in the notice by this subdivision.*

Sec. 4. Minnesota Statutes 1980, Section 609.535, is amended by adding a subdivision to read:

*Subd. 9. [CONFIDENTIALITY OF INFORMATION.] Any information released pursuant to either subdivision 6 or 7 shall not be intentionally released, delivered or communicated by the recipient to any third party unless the release, delivery or communication is necessary to the collection or prosecution of a complaint against a drawer under this section or section 609.52, subdivision 2, clause (3)(a).*

Sec. 5. [EFFECTIVE DATE.]

*This act is effective August 1, 1981, and applies to all crimes committed on or after that date."*

Amend the title as follows:

Page 1, line 6, after the semicolon, insert "providing notification of the release of information; restricting further disclosure of information released;"

And when so amended the bill do pass. Amendments adopted. Report adopted.

Mr. Schmitz from the Committee on Veterans' Affairs, to which was referred

S. F. No. 745: A bill for an act relating to veterans; requiring the commissioner of veterans affairs to furnish an American flag to the nearest surviving relative of a deceased veteran who served six or more years in the Minnesota National Guard; amending Minnesota Statutes 1980, Section 196.05.

Reports the same back with the recommendation that the bill be amended as follows:

Delete everything after the enacting clause and insert:

"Section 1. [192.381] [ADJUTANT GENERAL TO FURNISH AN AMERICAN FLAG TO SURVIVING RELATIVES.]

*Upon the death of any person who served six years or more in the Minnesota National Guard, the adjutant general shall furnish an American flag to the closest surviving relative of the deceased guardsman or former guardsman."*

Amend the title as follows:

Page 1, delete lines 2 to 7 and insert:

"relating to the military; requiring the adjutant general to furnish an American flag to the closest surviving relative of a deceased person who served six or more years in the Minnesota National Guard; proposing new law coded in Minnesota Statutes, Chapter 192."

And when so amended the bill do pass. Amendments adopted. Report adopted.

Mr. Wegener from the Committee on Local Government and Urban Affairs, to which was referred

S. F. No. 973: A bill for an act relating to local government; permitting the city council to fix the compensation of the park board in statutory cities; amending Minnesota Statutes 1980, Section 412.501.

Reports the same back with the recommendation that the bill be amended as follows:

Page 2, lines 24 and 25, reinstate the stricken language

Page 2, line 25, strike "\$100" and insert "\$500"

And when so amended the bill do pass. Amendments adopted. Report adopted.

Mr. Wegener from the Committee on Local Government and Urban Affairs, to which was referred

S. F. No. 735: A bill for an act relating to local government; regulating the tax levy of the joint recreation and park board of the city of Hibbing and Independent School District 701; amending Laws 1971, Chapter 573, Section 2.

Reports the same back with the recommendation that the bill be amended as follows:

Page 1, line 11, delete "section 1" and insert "sections 1 and 2, subdivision 2,"

And when so amended the bill do pass. Amendments adopted. Report adopted.

Mr. Wegener from the Committee on Local Government and Urban Affairs, to which was referred

S. F. No. 857: A bill for an act relating to metropolitan government; authorizing the metropolitan council to prepare guidelines relating to the amendment of comprehensive plans; amending Minnesota Statutes 1980, Section 473.864, Subdivision 2.

Reports the same back with the recommendation that the bill be amended as follows:

Page 1, lines 11 and 12, delete the new language

Page 1, line 14, reinstate the stricken language

Page 1, line 15, reinstate "submitted, and adopted in"

Page 1, line 16, before the period, insert "*conformance with guidelines adopted by the metropolitan council pursuant to section 473.854*"

And when so amended the bill do pass and be re-referred to the Committee on Governmental Operations. Amendments adopted. Report adopted.

Mr. Johnson from the Committee on Taxes and Tax Laws, to which was referred

S. F. No. 785: A bill for an act relating to taxation; real property; providing open space treatment for archery and firearms ranges; amending Minnesota Statutes 1980, Section 273.112, Subdivision 3.

Reports the same back with the recommendation that the bill do pass. Report adopted.

Mr. Johnson from the Committee on Taxes and Tax Laws, to which was referred

S. F. No. 636: A bill for an act relating to taxation; providing that the disallowance of income tax deductions relating to substandard housing shall not expire; amending Laws 1975, Chapter 226, Section 4, as amended.

Reports the same back with the recommendation that the bill do pass. Report adopted.

Mr. Johnson from the Committee on Taxes and Tax Laws, to which was re-referred

S. F. No. 95: A bill for an act relating to public improvements; permitting deferral of special assessments in instances of hardship; amending Minnesota Statutes 1980, Section 435.193.

Reports the same back with the recommendation that the bill be amended as follows:

Page 1, line 12, after "county," insert "*statutory or home rule charter*"

Page 1, lines 16 to 20, delete the new language

Page 1, line 20, after "county," insert "*statutory or home rule charter*"

Page 1, line 23, after "hardship" insert "*and for determining the existence of a disability*"

And when so amended the bill do pass. Amendments adopted. Report adopted.

Mr. Humphrey from the Committee on Energy and Housing, to which was referred

S. F. No. 887: A bill for an act relating to the housing finance agency; authorizing temporary rulemaking to define certain terms; providing for a revolving account; permitting certain loans; appropriating money; amending Minnesota Statutes 1980, Sections 462A.03, Subdivision 10; 462A.04, Subdivision 8; 462A.05, Subdivision 17, and by adding subdivisions; 462A.20, Subdivision 3; 462A.21, Subdivision 8, and by adding a subdivision; and

462A.22, Subdivision 9; repealing Minnesota Statutes 1980, Section 462A.21, Subdivision 11.

Reports the same back with the recommendation that the bill be amended as follows:

Page 4, after line 14, insert:

"Sec. 6, Minnesota Statutes 1980, Section 462A.07, is amended by adding a subdivision to read:

*Subd. 16. It may establish cooperative relationships with municipal housing and redevelopment authorities and municipalities to develop priorities for the use of agency resources and assistance within municipalities, and to consider municipal housing plans and programs in the process of setting the priorities."*

Page 5, after line 29, insert:

"Sec. 11, Minnesota Statutes 1980, Section 462C.03, is amended by adding a subdivision to read:

*Subd. 10. Notwithstanding any provision of this chapter to the contrary, not more than 20 percent of the aggregate dollar amount of all loans made or purchased within any calendar year under all of a city's housing programs shall be made or purchased without regard to the income limitations of section 462C.03, subdivision 2, and the occupancy limitations of section 462C.05, subdivisions 2 and 4.*

*Sec. 12. The provisions of section 11 shall not apply to any programs which were approved or are considered approved pursuant to section 462C.04, subdivision 2, by the Minnesota housing finance agency on or before the day of final enactment."*

Renumber the sections in sequence

Amend the title as follows:

Page 1, line 8, before "462A.20" insert "462A.07, by adding a subdivision;"

Page 1, line 10, delete "and"

Page 1, line 10, after the semicolon insert "and 462C.03, by adding a subdivision;"

And when so amended the bill do pass and be re-referred to the Committee on Finance. Amendments adopted. Report adopted.

Mr. Humphrey from the Committee on Energy and Housing, to which was referred

S. F. No. 777: A bill for an act relating to taxation; authorizing school district levies for energy conservation measures; amending Minnesota Statutes 1980, Section 275.125, by adding a subdivision.

Reports the same back with the recommendation that the bill be amended as follows:

Page 1, line 11, delete "upon" and insert "times"

Page 1, line 12, before "assessed" insert "adjusted"

Page 1, line 12, after "for" insert "*the preceding year for*"

Page 1, line 17, after "conservation" insert "*and renewable energy*"

Page 1, line 25, before the period insert "*, except that for a levy proposed in 1981, only one week's notice is required*"

Page 2, line 2, after "effective" insert "*the day following final enactment*"

Amend the title as follows:

Page 1, line 3, after "conservation" insert "*and renewable energy*"

And when so amended the bill do pass and be re-referred to the Committee on Education. Amendments adopted. Report adopted.

Mr. Moe, R.D. from the Committee on Rules and Administration, to which were referred

H. F. Nos. 330 and 470 for comparison with companion Senate Files, reports the following House Files were found identical and recommends the House Files be given their second reading and substituted for their companion Senate Files as follows:

GENERAL ORDERS		CONSENT CALENDAR		CALENDAR	
H.F. No.	S.F. No.	H.F. No.	S.F. No.	H.F. No.	S.F. No.
		330	262		
		470	439		

and that the above Senate Files be indefinitely postponed.

Pursuant to Rule 49, this report was prepared and submitted by the Secretary of the Senate on behalf of the Committee on Rules and Administration. Report adopted.

Mr. Moe, R.D. from the Committee on Rules and Administration, to which was referred

H. F. No. 525 for comparison with companion Senate File, reports the following House File was found not identical with its companion Senate File as follows:

GENERAL ORDERS		CONSENT CALENDAR		CALENDAR	
H.F. No.	S.F. No.	H.F. No.	S.F. No.	H.F. No.	S.F. No.
525	350				

Pursuant to Rule 49, the Committee on Rules and Administration recommends that H. F. No. 525 be amended as follows:

Strike all the language after the enacting clause of H. F. No. 525 and insert the language after the enacting clause of S. F. No. 350, as amended by the Committee on Agriculture and Natural Resources, adopted by the Senate March 23, 1981; further, strike the title of H. F. No. 525 and insert the title of S. F. No. 350, as amended.

And when so amended H. F. No. 525 will be identical to S. F. No. 350, and further recommends that H. F. No. 525 be given its second reading and substituted for S. F. No. 350, and that the Senate File be indefinitely postponed.

Pursuant to Rule 49, this report was prepared and submitted by the Secretary of the Senate on behalf of the Committee on Rules and Administration.

Amendments adopted. Report adopted.

Mr. Moe, R.D. from the Committee on Rules and Administration, to which were referred

H. F. Nos. 269 and 521 for comparison with companion Senate Files, reports the following House Files were found not identical with their companion Senate Files as follows:

GENERAL ORDERS		CONSENT CALENDAR		CALENDAR	
H.F. No.	S.F. No.	H.F. No.	S.F. No.	H.F. No.	S.F. No.
				269	216
521	370				

Pursuant to Rule 49, the Committee on Rules and Administration recommends that H. F. No. 269 be amended as follows:

Page 1, line 11, strike "his" and before "household" insert "*a candidate's*"

Page 1, line 11, delete "*his*" and insert "*a candidate's*"

Page 1, line 12, delete "*his*" and insert "*a candidate's*"

And when so amended H. F. No. 269 will be identical to S. F.No. 216, and further recommends that H. F. No. 269 be given its second reading and substituted for S. F. No. 216, and that the Senate File be indefinitely postponed.

Pursuant to Rule 49, the Committee on Rules and Administration recommends that H. F. No. 521 be amended as follows:

Page 2, line 31, delete the comma

And when so amended H. F. No. 521 will be identical to S. F.No. 370, and further recommends that H. F. No. 521 be given its second reading and substituted for S. F. No. 370, and that the Senate File be indefinitely postponed.

Pursuant to Rule 49, this report was prepared and submitted by the Secretary of the Senate on behalf of the Committee on Rules and Administration. Amendments adopted. Report adopted.

## SECOND READING OF SENATE BILLS

S. F. Nos. 625, 154, 745, 973, 735, 785, 636 and 95 were read the second time.

## SECOND READING OF HOUSE BILLS

H. F. Nos. 330, 470, 525, 269 and 521 were read the second time.

## MOTIONS AND RESOLUTIONS

Mr. Nichols moved that the names of Messrs. Peterson, C.C.; Olhoft; Chmielewski and Mrs. Brataas be added as co-authors to S. F. No. 359. The motion prevailed.

Mr. Lindgren moved that the name of Mr. Solon be added as co-author to S.

F. No. 685. The motion prevailed.

Mr. Sikorski moved that the name of Mr. Dahl be added as co-author to S. F. No. 842. The motion prevailed.

Mr. Stern moved that the name of Mr. Frank be added as co-author to S. F. No. 941. The motion prevailed.

Mr. Rued moved that his name be stricken as co-author to S. F. No. 979. The motion prevailed.

Mr. Pehler moved that the names of Messrs. Wegener, Taylor and Humphrey be added as co-authors to S. F. No. 982. The motion prevailed.

Mr. Sikorski moved that the names of Messrs. Nelson and Penny be added as co-authors to S. F. No. 1038. The motion prevailed.

Mr. Olhoft moved that the name of Mr. Kroening be added as co-author to S. F. No. 1043. The motion prevailed.

Mr. Bertram introduced —

Senate Resolution No. 40: A Senate resolution congratulating the Huskies girls basketball team from Albany High School for winning the 1981 Class A State High School Girls Basketball Consolation Championship.

Referred to the Committee on Rules and Administration.

Mr. Frank moved that the names of Messrs. Merriam and Dahl be added as co-authors to S. F. No. 962. The motion prevailed.

Mr. Johnson moved that S. F. No. 735 be stricken from General Orders and re-referred to the Committee on Taxes and Tax Laws. The motion prevailed.

Mr. Sikorski moved that S. F. No. 1038 be withdrawn from the Committee on Education and returned to its author. The motion prevailed.

Mr. Chmielewski moved that S. F. No. 179, No. 1 on the Calendar, be stricken and placed on General Orders. The motion prevailed.

### CONFIRMATION

Mr. Solon moved that the following appointment be taken from the table. The motion prevailed.

Mr. Solon moved that in accordance with the report from the Committee on Health, Welfare and Corrections, adopted March 16, 1981, the Senate, having given its advice, do now consent to and confirm the appointment of:

### STATE HEALTH COORDINATING COUNCIL CHAIRMAN

George Pettersen, 84 Malcolm SE, Minneapolis, Hennepin County, effective February 25, 1980, for a term expiring February 24, 1982.

The motion prevailed. So the appointment was confirmed.

## MOTIONS AND RESOLUTIONS - CONTINUED

Mr. Davies moved that S. F. No. 446, No. 47 on General Orders, be stricken and re-referred to the Committee on Rules and Administration. The motion prevailed.

## CALENDAR

H. F. No. 183: A bill for an act relating to state employees; including the staff of the council on Black Minnesotans within the unclassified civil service; amending Minnesota Statutes 1980, Section 3.9225, Subdivision 5.

Was read the third time and placed on its final passage.

The question was taken on the passage of the bill.

The roll was called, and there were yeas 58 and nays 1, as follows:

Those who voted in the affirmative were:

Ashbach	Dicklich	Kroening	Penny	Spear
Bang	Dieterich	Kronebusch	Peterson, D. L.	Stern
Belanger	Engler	Lantry	Peterson, R. W.	Stokowski
Benson	Frank	Lessard	Pillsbury	Stumpf
Berg	Frederick	Lindgren	Ramstad	Taylor
Bernhagen	Frederickson	Luther	Renneke	Ulland
Bertram	Hanson	Menning	Rued	Vega
Brataas	Hughes	Merriam	Schmitz	Waldorf
Chmielewski	Humphrey	Moe, D. M.	Setzepfandt	Wegener
Dahl	Johnson	Moe, R. D.	Sieloff	Willet
Davies	Keefe	Nelson	Sikorski	
Davis	Knoll	Pehler	Solon	

Mr. Olhoft voted in the negative.

So the bill passed and its title was agreed to.

H. F. No. 44: A bill for an act relating to health; repealing a certain administrative rule of the department of health unconditionally prohibiting double beds in nursing homes and boarding care homes; exempting out of state physicians from licensing regulations under certain conditions; amending Minnesota Statutes 1980, Section 147.09.

Was read the third time and placed on its final passage.

The question was taken on the passage of the bill.

The roll was called, and there were yeas 63 and nays 0, as follows:

Those who voted in the affirmative were:

Ashbach	Dicklich	Kronebusch	Peterson, C. C.	Solon
Bang	Dieterich	Lantry	Peterson, D. L.	Spear
Belanger	Engler	Lessard	Peterson, R. W.	Stern
Benson	Frank	Lindgren	Petty	Stokowski
Berg	Frederick	Luther	Pillsbury	Stumpf
Berglin	Frederickson	Menning	Purfeerst	Taylor
Bernhagen	Hanson	Merriam	Ramstad	Ulland
Bertram	Hughes	Moe, D. M.	Renneke	Vega
Brataas	Humphrey	Moe, R. D.	Rued	Waldorf
Chmielewski	Johnson	Nelson	Schmitz	Wegener
Dahl	Keefe	Olhoft	Setzepfandt	Willet
Davies	Knoll	Pehler	Sieloff	
Davis	Kroening	Penny	Sikorski	

So the bill passed and its title was agreed to.



H. F. No. 45: A bill for an act relating to health; repealing a certain administrative rule of the department of health unconditionally prohibiting the use of locks on patient room doors in nursing homes.

Was read the third time and placed on its final passage.

The question was taken on the passage of the bill.

The roll was called, and there were yeas 63 and nays 2, as follows:

Those who voted in the affirmative were:

Ashbach	Dicklich	Langseth	Peterson, C. C.	Solon
Bang	Dieterich	Lantry	Peterson, D. L.	Spear
Belanger	Engler	Lessard	Peterson, R. W.	Stern
Benson	Frank	Lindgren	Petty	Stokowski
Berg	Frederick	Luther	Pillsbury	Stumpf
Berglin	Frederickson	Menning	Purfeerst	Taylor
Bernhagen	Hanson	Merriam	Ramstad	Tennessee
Bertram	Hughes	Moe, D. M.	Renneke	Ulland
Brataas	Humphrey	Moe, R. D.	Rued	Vega
Chmielewski	Johnson	Nelson	Schmitz	Waldorf
Dahl	Keefe	Olhoft	Setzepfandt	Willet
Davies	Knoll	Pehler	Sieloff	
Davis	Kroening	Penny	Sikorski	

Mrs. Kronebusch and Mr. Wegener voted in the negative.

So the bill passed and its title was agreed to.

S. F. No. 96: A bill for an act relating to state property; providing for the conveyance to Kandiyohi County of a residence building in Sibley state park.

Was read the third time and placed on its final passage.

The question was taken on the passage of the bill.

The roll was called, and there were yeas 65 and nays 0, as follows:

Those who voted in the affirmative were:

Ashbach	Dicklich	Kronebusch	Penny	Sikorski
Bang	Dieterich	Langseth	Peterson, C. C.	Solon
Belanger	Engler	Lantry	Peterson, D. L.	Spear
Benson	Frank	Lessard	Peterson, R. W.	Stern
Berg	Frederick	Lindgren	Petty	Stokowski
Berglin	Frederickson	Luther	Pillsbury	Stumpf
Bernhagen	Hanson	Menning	Purfeerst	Taylor
Bertram	Hughes	Merriam	Ramstad	Tennessee
Brataas	Humphrey	Moe, D. M.	Renneke	Ulland
Chmielewski	Johnson	Moe, R. D.	Rued	Vega
Dahl	Keefe	Nelson	Schmitz	Waldorf
Davies	Knoll	Olhoft	Setzepfandt	Wegener
Davis	Kroening	Pehler	Sieloff	Willet

So the bill passed and its title was agreed to.

### GENERAL ORDERS

The Senate resolved itself into a Committee of the Whole, with Mr. Tennessee in the chair.

After some time spent therein, the committee arose, and Mr. Tennesen reported that the committee had considered the following:

S. F. Nos. 279, 384, 336, 197, 432, 329, 182, 275, 347, 400, 34, 249, 244, 2, 253, 537, 416, 218, 387 and H. F. Nos. 84, 71, 341 and 40, which the committee recommends to pass.

H. F. No. 201, which the committee recommends to pass, subject to the following motion:

Mr. Davis moved that the amendment made to H. F. No. 201 by the Committee on Rules and Administration in the report adopted March 12, 1981, pursuant to Rule 49, be stricken. The motion prevailed. So the amendment was stricken.

S. F. No. 365, which the committee recommends to pass with the following amendment offered by Mr. Spear:

Page 1, line 17, delete "an" and insert "a"

Page 1, lines 18 and 20, delete "approved" and insert "registered"

Page 1, line 21, delete "APPROVED" and insert "REGISTERED"

Page 1, line 25, delete "Approved" and insert "Registered"

Page 2, lines 14 and 19, delete "An approved" and insert "A registered"

Page 2, line 23, delete "APPROVAL PROCESS" and insert "REGISTRATION"

Page 2, line 25, delete "an approved" and insert "a registered"

Page 2, line 26, delete the language after "organization"

Page 2, line 27, delete "thereafter"

Page 2, line 29, delete "determine" and insert "identify"

Page 2, line 36, delete "this" and after "chapter" insert "309"

Page 3, line 2, after the period, insert "The commissioner shall consult with the attorney general to determine if the combined charitable organization and its charitable agencies are in compliance with chapter 309."

Page 3, line 7, delete "Approved" and insert "Registered"

Page 3, line 9, delete "grant" and insert "register"

Page 3, line 10, delete "approval to"

Page 3, after line 10, insert:

"Sec. 3. [RULES.]

*The commissioner shall promulgate rules to implement the provisions of sections 1 and 2. The rules shall not require the modification of any existing payroll deduction fund drive for state employees previously authorized by section 15.375, subdivision 1."*

Page 3, line 15, delete "and 3" and insert "3, and 4"

Page 3, line 15, delete "January" and insert "March"

Renumber the sections in sequence

The motion prevailed. So the amendment was adopted.

S. F. No. 208, which the committee recommends to pass with the following amendments offered by Messrs. Nelson and Merriam:

Mr. Nelson moved to amend S. F. No. 208 as follows:

Page 1, line 11, before "*Notwithstanding*" insert "*Subject to the provisions of sections 88.16, 88.17 and 88.22, but*"

Page 1, line 11, after "*any*" insert "*other*"

Page 2, line 1, delete "*or in any area where open*" and insert a period

Page 2, delete lines 2 and 3

The motion prevailed. So the amendment was adopted.

Mr. Merriam moved to amend S. F. No. 208 as follows:

Page 2, after line 3, insert:

*"Any town or city adopting an ordinance pursuant to this subdivision, within one year after its adoption, shall establish a leaf composting system. The pollution control agency, upon request, shall provide technical assistance in designing and operating the system."*

The motion prevailed. So the amendment was adopted.

S. F. No. 263, which the committee recommends to pass with the following amendment offered by Mr. Penny:

Page 1, line 24, delete "*in the right front or rear seats*" and insert "*according to the manufacturer's instructions*"

Page 1, line 26, delete "*according to the manufacturer's instructions*"

The motion prevailed. So the amendment was adopted.

H. F. No. 173, which the committee recommends to pass with the following amendment offered by Mr. Pillsbury:

Amend H.F. No. 173, as amended pursuant to Rule 49, adopted by the Senate March 19, 1981, as follows:

(The text of the amended House File is identical to S.F. No. 264.)

Page 3, line 33, strike "*declared*"

Page 3, line 34, strike "*to be*"

Page 4, line 4, after "*secure*" insert "*personal care and training*"

Page 4, line 5, strike "*personal care and training*"

Page 7, after line 22, insert:

"Sec. 11. Minnesota Statutes 1980, Section 519.05, is amended to read:

519.05 [LIABILITY OF HUSBAND AND WIFE.]

~~No married woman shall be~~ A spouse is not liable for any debts of her husband, nor shall any married man be liable for any debts, or contracts of his wife, committed or entered into either before or during coverture the other spouse, except for necessities furnished to the wife other after marriage,

where ~~he~~ *the spouse* would be liable at common law. Where husband and wife are living together, they shall be jointly and severally liable for all necessary household articles and supplies furnished to and used by the family."

Page 7, line 29, delete "*persons*" and insert "*of their*"

Page 9, line 16, after "Before" strike "any" and after the stricken "such" insert "*a*"

Page 9, line 16, after "receives" strike "any"

Page 9, lines 17 and 28, strike "any such" and insert "*the*"

Page 9, line 34, strike "husband"

Page 9, line 34, delete "*or wife*" and insert "*spouse*"

Page 9, line 34, strike "his"

Page 9, line 34, delete "*or her*" and insert "*the*"

Page 10, line 6, reinstate "A"

Page 10, line 6, delete "*people*" and insert "*person*"

Page 10, line 7, delete "*their*" and insert "*a*"

Page 10, line 27, strike "such" and insert "*the*"

Page 10, line 28, strike "such condition as" and insert "*the conditions*"

Page 11, line 30, reinstate "witness" and delete "Witnesses"

Page 11, line 30, before "witness" insert "A"

Page 11, line 31, strike "refuse" and insert "*refuses*"

Page 11, line 32, delete "*they*"

Page 11, line 32, strike "shall comply" and insert "*the witness complies*"

Page 11, line 33, strike "be" and insert "*is*"

Page 11, line 34, strike "shall receive such compensation"

Page 11, line 35, strike "as" and insert "*shall receive the compensation*"

Page 11, line 35, strike "shall"

Page 11, line 36, strike "direct" and insert "*directs*"

Page 12, line 21, strike "shall so fail" and insert "*fails*"

Page 12, line 22, delete "*the*"

Page 12, line 24, strike "shall apply" and insert "*applies*"

Renumber the sections in sequence

Amend the title as follows:

Page 1, line 10, after "510.06;" insert "519.05;"

The motion prevailed. So the amendment was adopted.

S. F. No. 454, which the committee recommends to pass with the following amendment offered by Ms. Berglin:

Page 5, line 4, delete "3" and insert "4"

Page 5, line 4, delete "August 1, 1981," and insert "the day following final enactment"

The motion prevailed. So the amendment was adopted.

S. F. No. 375, which the committee recommends to pass with the following amendment offered by Mr. Belanger:

Page 3, line 36, delete "section 4" and insert "this act"

Page 12, after line 13, insert:

"Sec. 10. [EXISTING HEALTH SERVICE PROGRAMS NOT AFFECTED.]

*This act does not affect the eligibility of any statutory or home rule charter city of the first or second class to receive a subsidy pursuant to the provisions of Minnesota Statutes, Section 145.917 or otherwise affect the authority of any such city to operate or to continue to operate a health service program."*

Renumber the sections in sequence

The motion prevailed. So the amendment was adopted.

S. F. No. 331, which the committee recommends to pass with the following amendment offered by Mr. Wegener:

Page 1, after line 24, insert:

"Sec. 2. [EFFECTIVE DATE.] *Section 1 is effective on the date after final enactment."*

Amend the title as follows:

Page 1, lines 4 and 5, delete "acquire services for the morale of troops serving" and insert "provide an enlisted persons service center"

The motion prevailed. So the amendment was adopted.

S. F. No. 354, which the committee recommends to pass with the following amendment offered by Mr. Peterson, C.C.:

Page 22, line 15, after "4," insert "6, 7,"

The motion prevailed. So the amendment was adopted.

S. F. No. 560, which the committee reports progress, subject to the following motion:

Mr. Hughes moved to amend S. F. No. 560 as follows:

Page 1, after line 15, insert:

"Sec. 2. [APPLICATION.]

*This act is effective in the counties of Anoka, Carver, Dakota, Hennepin, Ramsey, Scott and Washington."*

Renumber the sections in sequence.

The motion prevailed. So the amendment was adopted.

S. F. No. 560 was then progressed.

On motion of Mr. Tennessen, the report of the Committee of the Whole, as

kept by the Secretary, was adopted.

### INTRODUCTION AND FIRST READING OF SENATE BILLS

The following bills were read the first time and referred to the committees indicated.

Messrs. Merriam, Vega and Renneke introduced —

S.F. No. 1045: A bill for an act relating to elections; providing for preparation of consolidated primary election ballots by counties at state expense; appropriating money; amending Minnesota Statutes 1980, Section 203A.23, Subdivision 1.

Referred to the Committee on Elections and Reapportionment.

Messrs. Hughes, Langseth, Lindgren and Peterson, D.L. introduced —

S.F. No. 1046: A bill for an act relating to education; continuing the responsibility of educational cooperative service units to establish and maintain an educational planning task force; amending Minnesota Statutes 1980, Section 122.86.

Referred to the Committee on Education.

Mr. Peterson, R.W. introduced —

S.F. No. 1047: A bill for an act relating to negligent fires; altering minimum sentences for negligent fires; amending Minnesota Statutes 1980, Section 609.576.

Referred to the Committee on Judiciary.

Mr. Waldorf introduced —

S.F. No. 1048: A bill for an act relating to public utilities; prohibiting the averaging of rates by natural gas utilities; proposing new law coded in Minnesota Statutes, Chapter 216B.

Referred to the Committee on Commerce.

Messrs. Ulland and Sieloff introduced —

S.F. No. 1049: A bill for an act relating to energy; providing loans to communities for district heating systems; clarifying authority for municipalities to own and operate district heating systems; providing authority for city governments to authorize district heating improvements; expanding the definition of district heating systems to include cogeneration facilities; appropriating money; authorizing sale of bonds; amending Minnesota Statutes 1980, Sections 412.351; 412.361, Subdivision 3; and 429.021, Subdivision 1; proposing new law coded in Minnesota Statutes, Chapters 116H and 465.

Referred to the Committee on Energy and Housing.

Messrs. Hanson, Sieloff, Lessard and Keefe introduced —

S.F. No. 1050: A bill for an act relating to statute of limitations; providing a

limitation on actions against land surveyors; proposing new law coded in Minnesota Statutes, Chapter 541.

Referred to the Committee on Judiciary.

Messrs. Solon and Ulland introduced—

S.F. No. 1051: A bill for an act relating to transportation; providing for continuing Amtrak rail passenger service between Duluth and the Twin Cities metropolitan area; appropriating money.

Referred to the Committee on Transportation.

Messrs. Peterson, C.C.; Renneke and Pehler introduced—

S.F. No. 1052: A bill for an act relating to retirement; highway patrol benefits and refunds; amending Minnesota Statutes 1980, Sections 352B.08, Subdivision 2; and 352B.11, Subdivisions 1 and 2.

Referred to the Committee on Public Employees and Pensions.

Messrs. Peterson, C.C.; Renneke and Pehler introduced—

S.F. No. 1053: A bill for an act relating to retirement; providing annual benefit increases to pre-1973 retirees and surviving spouses of the highway patrolmen's retirement fund; appropriating funds; proposing new law coded in Minnesota Statutes, Chapter 352B.

Referred to the Committee on Public Employees and Pensions.

Mr. Frank introduced—

S.F. No. 1054: A bill for an act relating to insurance; proscribing certain discriminatory practices relating to price quotations to agents and brokers; amending Minnesota Statutes 1980, Section 72A.20, by adding a subdivision.

Referred to the Committee on Commerce.

Messrs. Berg and Setzepfandt introduced—

S.F. No. 1055: A bill for an act relating to state trails; authorizing the sale of certain lands acquired for the Luce Line Trail.

Referred to the Committee on Agriculture and Natural Resources.

Messrs. Waldorf and Peterson, C.C. introduced—

S.F. No. 1056: A bill for an act relating to the state civil service; providing for the apportionment of veteran's preference points; amending Minnesota Statutes 1980, Section 43.30.

Referred to the Committee on Governmental Operations.

Messrs. Schmitz and Waldorf introduced—

S.F. No. 1057: A bill for an act relating to the state fire marshal; deleting references to a dedicated fund and to archaic misdemeanor fines; repealing

obsolete statutory requirements pertaining to flammable liquids, fire extinguishers, doors of buildings, and theaters; correcting an erroneous designation of responsibility concerning fire insurance premium returns; setting a penalty; amending Minnesota Statutes 1980, Sections 299F.011, Subdivision 1; 299F.19; 299F.20; 299F.21; 299F.22; 299F.23; 299F.24; 299F.26, Subdivision 1; 299F.29; 299F.31; 299F.36, Subdivision 2; 299F.391, Subdivision 1; and 299F.46, Subdivision 1; repealing Minnesota Statutes 1980, Sections 299F.011, Subdivision 2; 299F.27; 299G.10; 299H.01; 299H.02; and 299H.28, Subdivision 1.

Referred to the Committee on Governmental Operations.

Messrs. Belanger; Stern; Johnson; Moe, R.D. and Lindgren introduced—

S.F. No. 1058: A bill for an act relating to elections; authorizing the validation of absentee ballots by judges of absentee ballot precincts; amending Minnesota Statutes 1980, Sections 207.11, Subdivisions 1 and 5; and 207.30, Subdivision 3.

Referred to the Committee on Elections and Reapportionment.

Mr. Lessard introduced—

S.F. No. 1059: A bill for an act relating to courts; providing that the chief judge of each judicial district shall be a district court judge and that the assistant chief judge shall be a judge of county, county municipal or probate court; requiring consent of the affected judge before assignment to a court other than the one the judge serves; amending Minnesota Statutes 1980, Section 484.69, Subdivisions 2 and 3.

Referred to the Committee on Judiciary.

Messrs. Tennesen and Davies introduced—

S.F. No. 1060: A bill for an act relating to courts; abolishing the office of referee; providing for continuance of certain referee positions for a limited time; providing for continuance of certain judicial officer positions for a limited time; abolishing the office of court commissioner; providing for continuance of the Ramsey county court commissioner position for a limited time; amending Minnesota Statutes 1980, Sections 260.031, Subdivision 1, and by adding a subdivision; 484.70, Subdivision 1, and by adding subdivisions; 487.08, Subdivisions 2 and 3, and by adding a subdivision; 489.01; 525.10; repealing Minnesota Statutes 1980, Sections 484.67; 484.70, Subdivisions 2, 3, 4 and 5; 487.08, Subdivision 4; 487.09; and 489.05.

Referred to the Committee on Judiciary.

Messrs. Wegener, Dieterich, Hughes, Langseth and Rued introduced—

S.F. No. 1061: A bill for an act relating to education; maintaining a low-power television transmission project; authorizing the department of education to hire consultants to review the existing low-power television transmission project, study the need for expanding the project, recommend sites and procedures for additional projects, and assist school districts in applying for federal communications licenses; appropriating money.

Referred to the Committee on Education.



Mr. Dicklich introduced—

S.F. No. 1062: A bill for an act relating to local government; exempting certain small cities from the per capita tax levy limitation; amending Minnesota Statutes 1980, Section 275.11, Subdivision 1.

Referred to the Committee on Taxes and Tax Laws.

Messrs. Hughes, Merriam, Wegener and Langseth introduced—

S.F. No. 1063: A bill for an act relating to watershed districts; limiting assessment of properties contributing water to a proposed watershed improvement; amending Minnesota Statutes 1980, Section 112.501, Subdivision 2, and by adding a subdivision.

Referred to the Committee on Agriculture and Natural Resources.

Messrs. Bertram, Nelson and Dieterich introduced—

S.F. No. 1064: A bill for an act relating to crimes; changing certain penalties and enforcement procedures in the fair campaign practices act; amending Minnesota Statutes 1980, Sections 210A.37 and 210A.42.

Referred to the Committee on Elections and Reapportionment.

Messrs. Chmielewski, Schmitz, Mrs. Kronebusch and Mr. Belanger introduced—

S.F. No. 1065: A bill for an act relating to housing; establishing a veterans housing assistance program in the department of veterans affairs; abolishing the veterans housing assistance program of the housing finance agency; appropriating money; proposing new law coded in Minnesota Statutes, Chapter 196; repealing Minnesota Statutes 1980, Section 462A.05, Subdivision 19.

Referred to the Committee on Energy and Housing.

Ms. Berglin introduced—

S.F. No. 1066: A bill for an act relating to franchises; requiring motor fuel franchises to extend to and bind the successors of both parties; proposing new law coded in Minnesota Statutes, Chapter 80C.

Referred to the Committee on Commerce.

Mr. Davies introduced—

S.F. No. 1067: A bill for an act relating to taxation; eliminating the required appeal to the county board of equalization prior to appeal to the small claims division of the tax court; allowing claims that property has been assessed unfairly in comparison with other property in the school district to be determined by the district court; amending Minnesota Statutes 1980, Sections 271.21, Subdivision 4, and 278.01, Subdivision 1.

Referred to the Committee on Judiciary.

Messrs. Moe, R.D. and Hanson introduced—

S.F. No. 1068: A bill for an act relating to agriculture; authorizing gradual increases in assessments for potato research and promotion; amending Minnesota Statutes 1980, Section 30.469.

Referred to the Committee on Agriculture and Natural Resources.

Mr. Chmielewski introduced—

S.F. No. 1069: A bill for an act relating to workers' compensation; revising the method for members of the reinsurance association to select a retention limit; changing the indexing provisions for the retention limits of the reinsurance association; increasing the prefunded limit of the association; providing for the reinsurance association to return excess premiums or collect deficient premiums from association members; changing the limitations of the purchase of workers' compensation reinsurance from private entities; amending Minnesota Statutes 1980, Sections 79.34, Subdivisions 1 and 2; 79.35; and 79.36.

Referred to the Committee on Employment.

Messrs. Hughes and Dahl introduced—

S.F. No. 1070: A bill for an act relating to local government; changing responsibilities for the administration of the Ramsey county court house and Saint Paul city hall building; amending Laws 1974, Chapter 435, Section 3.12; and repealing Laws 1980, Chapter 612, Section 5.

Referred to the Committee on Local Government and Urban Affairs.

Mr. Dicklich introduced—

S.F. No. 1071: A bill for an act relating to resolution of disputes; authorizing establishment of dispute resolution mechanisms; appropriating money; proposing new law coded as Minnesota Statutes, Chapter 494.

Referred to the Committee on Judiciary.

Mr. Dieterich introduced—

S.F. No. 1072: A bill for an act relating to the city of Falcon Heights; authorizing the imposition of a tax on the gross receipts of amusements within the city limits.

Referred to the Committee on Taxes and Tax Laws.

Messrs. Dieterich, Solon and Stumpf introduced—

S.F. No. 1073: A bill for an act relating to transportation; providing for continuing Amtrak rail passenger service between Duluth and the Twin Cities metropolitan area; appropriating money.

Referred to the Committee on Transportation.

Messrs. Merriam; Peterson, R.W. and Humphrey introduced—

S.F. No. 1074: A bill for an act relating to natural resources; extending the

permissible term of agricultural leases of state peat lands; amending Minnesota Statutes 1980, Section 92.50, Subdivision 1.

Referred to the Committee on Agriculture and Natural Resources.

Messrs. Frederickson; Davis; Penny; Peterson, D.L. and Rued introduced—

S.F. No. 1075: A bill for an act relating to agriculture; providing for continuation of certain farm tenancies on termination of life estates; proposing new law coded in Minnesota Statutes, Chapter 500.

Referred to the Committee on Judiciary.

Messrs. Hanson, Wegener and Johnson introduced—

S.F. No. 1076: A bill for an act relating to natural resources; raising limitations on values of state timber which may be sold at public auction or informal sale; providing for special auction sales and changing certain other provisions relating to the sale and removal of state timber; amending Minnesota Statutes 1980, Sections 90.031, Subdivision 4; 90.101, Subdivision 1; 90.151, Subdivisions 11 and 13; 90.173; 90.181, Subdivision 2; 90.191, Subdivision 1; proposing new law coded in Minnesota Statutes, Chapter 90.

Referred to the Committee on Agriculture and Natural Resources.

Mr. Johnson, Ms. Berglin, Mr. Setzepfandt and Mrs. Lantry introduced—

S.F. No. 1077: A bill for an act relating to taxation; real property; adjusting the maximum amount of market value subject to certain homestead classification ratios based upon average sale price of residential homes; amending Minnesota Statutes 1980, Section 273.13, Subdivisions 6 and 7; proposing new law coded in Minnesota Statutes, Chapter 273.

Referred to the Committee on Taxes and Tax Laws.

Messrs. Rued; Wegener; Peterson, C.C.; Chmielewski and Willet introduced—

S.F. No. 1078: A bill for an act relating to game and fish; expanding the list of counties in which the use of snowmobiles may be authorized in connection with taking beaver or otter; amending Minnesota Statutes 1980, Section 100.29, Subdivision 30.

Referred to the Committee on Agriculture and Natural Resources.

Messrs. Stern, Spear, Ms. Berglin and Mr. Frederickson introduced—

S.F. No. 1079: A bill for an act relating to retirement; providing for an exemption from membership therein for city managers; proposing new law coded in Minnesota Statutes, Chapter 353.

Referred to the Committee on Public Employees and Pensions.

Messrs. Peterson, C.C.; Lessard; Humphrey; Hanson and Ramstad introduced—

S.F. No. 1080: A bill for an act relating to crimes; increasing the penalty for

intentional and unintentional homicides committed while committing certain felonies; amending Minnesota Statutes 1980, Sections 609.185; 609.19; 609.195; and 609.20.

Referred to the Committee on Judiciary.

Mr. Peterson, C.C. introduced—

S.F. No. 1081: A bill for an act relating to the state auditor; providing funding to be used to prepare the report to the legislature on the general financial condition of the various volunteer firefighters' relief associations; appropriating money.

Referred to the Committee on Public Employees and Pensions.

Messrs. Humphrey, Merriam and Willet introduced—

S.F. No. 1082: A bill for an act relating to natural resources; imposing reclamation requirements on mining and removal of peat; amending Minnesota Statutes 1980, Sections 93.44; 93.46, Subdivision 2; 93.47, Subdivision 2; and 93.481, Subdivision 1.

Referred to the Committee on Agriculture and Natural Resources.

Messrs. Solon, Spear, Bang and Stern introduced—

S.F. No. 1083: A bill for an act relating to alcoholic beverages; removing the prohibition against sale on election days; amending Minnesota Statutes 1980, Sections 340.034, Subdivision 1; and 340.14, Subdivision 1.

Referred to the Committee on Commerce.

Messrs. Stern, Solon, Spear and Bang introduced—

S.F. No. 1084: A bill for an act relating to intoxicating liquor; hours for Sunday sale; amending Minnesota Statutes 1980, Section 340.14, Subdivision 5.

Referred to the Committee on Commerce.

Mr. Wegener introduced—

S.F. No. 1085: A bill for an act relating to local government; regulating the appointment, procedures, duties and organization of charter commissions; amending Minnesota Statutes 1980, Sections 410.05; 410.06; 410.07; and 410.12, Subdivision 1.

Referred to the Committee on Local Government and Urban Affairs.

Messrs. Humphrey and Johnson introduced—

S.F. No. 1086: A bill for an act relating to special assessments; permitting special assessments for certain residential energy conservation improvements; amending Minnesota Statutes 1980, Section 429.011, by adding a subdivision; and 429.021, Subdivision 1.

Referred to the Committee on Energy and Housing.

Messrs. Davies, Tennessen, Bang, Ashbach and Luther introduced—

S.F. No. 1087: A bill for an act relating to insurance; providing for the examination of certain insurers; requiring certain reports and providing certain alternatives to examinations; authorizing the commissioner to promulgate rules; broadening the commissioner's power to revoke or suspend certificates of authority; expanding certain insurers' investment authority; allowing the commissioner to regulate an insurer's ratio of qualified assets to required liabilities; broadening the coverage of the financial statement requirement; providing for annual audits; providing standards for the investment of assets of insurance companies; allowing the use of certain depositories and systems; providing certain limitations on the acquisition of specified investments and holdings; providing for miscellaneous changes and clarifications; amending Minnesota Statutes 1980, Sections 60A.031, Subdivisions 1, 3, 4, 5, and by adding subdivisions; 60A.05; 60A.11, by adding subdivisions; 60A.13, Subdivisions 1 and 6, and by adding subdivisions; 61A.28, Subdivisions 2, 3, and 6; 61A.282; 61A.29, Subdivision 2; 61A.30; 61A.31, Subdivisions 1 and 3; proposing new law coded in Minnesota Statutes, Chapters 60A and 61A; repealing Minnesota Statutes 1980, Sections 60A.031, Subdivision 2; and 60A.11, Subdivisions 2 to 8.

Referred to the Committee on Commerce.

Mr. Davies introduced—

S.F. No. 1088: A bill for an act relating to real property; providing for the registration of certain possessory estates in real property without court proceedings; providing for a changeover from a certificate of possessory title to a certificate of title after a certain number of years; proposing new law coded as Minnesota Statutes, Chapter 508A.

Referred to the Committee on Judiciary.

Mr. Knutson, by request, introduced—

S.F. No. 1089: A bill for an act relating to public welfare; modifying the liability of counties for reimbursement to the state of the costs of certain state hospital patients; amending Minnesota Statutes 1980, Section 246.54.

Referred to the Committee on Health, Welfare and Corrections.

Mr. Sikorski introduced—

S.F. No. 1090: A bill for an act relating to Washington county; providing for the appointment, powers and compensation of a court commissioner.

Referred to the Committee on Judiciary.

Mr. Sikorski introduced—

S.F. No. 1091: A bill for an act relating to education; providing for a raptor research center at the University of Minnesota; appropriating money.

Referred to the Committee on Agriculture and Natural Resources.

Mr. Sieloff introduced—

S.F. No. 1092: A bill for an act relating to taxation; providing for the collection of taxes; amending Minnesota Statutes 1980, Sections 270.70, Subdivisions 1, 2, 3 and 5, and by adding subdivisions; 290.48, Subdivisions 1, 3 and 4; 290.54; 290.92, Subdivision 6; 297A.33, Subdivision 2; proposing new law coded in Minnesota Statutes, Chapter 270; and repealing Minnesota Statutes 1980, Sections 290.48, Subdivision 2; 297A.33, Subdivision 6; and 297A.40, Subdivision 2.

Referred to the Committee on Taxes and Tax Laws.

Messrs. Pehler; Setzepfandt; Merriam; Peterson, D.L. and Ulland introduced—

S.F. No. 1093: A bill for an act relating to taxation; income; providing for a deduction for excess costs associated with the employment of disabled persons; amending Minnesota Statutes 1980, Sections 290.01, Subdivision 20; and 290.09, by adding a subdivision.

Referred to the Committee on Taxes and Tax Laws.

Mr. Tennesen, by request, introduced—

S.F. No. 1094: A bill for an act relating to courts; providing for certain reorganization of the court system in the state; providing that Hennepin and Ramsey municipal courts shall also be probate courts; abolishing the office of referee; providing for continuance of certain referee positions for a limited time; providing for continuance of certain judicial officer positions for a limited time; abolishing the office of court commissioner; providing for continuance of the Ramsey county court commissioner position for a limited time; amending Minnesota Statutes 1980, Sections 2.722, Subdivision 1, and by adding a subdivision; 260.021, Subdivision 4; 260.031, Subdivision 1, and by adding a subdivision; 484.70, Subdivision 1, and by adding subdivisions; 487.08, Subdivisions 2, 3, and by adding a subdivision; 488A.01, Subdivisions 1, 8, and by adding subdivisions; 488A.18, Subdivisions 1, 9, and by adding subdivisions; 489.01; 525.10; repealing Minnesota Statutes 1980, Sections 260.019; 484.64; 484.65; 484.67; 484.70, Subdivisions 2, 3, 4 and 5; 487.08, Subdivision 4; 487.09; 488A.01, Subdivision 7; 488A.18, Subdivision 8; 489.05; and 525.04.

Referred to the Committee on Judiciary.

Messrs. Moe, R.D.; Johnson; Humphrey and Spear introduced—

S.F. No. 1095: A bill for an act relating to the department of economic security; authorizing financial assistance to community action agencies; defining terms; providing a formula for the distribution of funds; proposing new law coded as Minnesota Statutes, Chapter 268A.

Referred to the Committee on Health, Welfare and Corrections.

Messrs. Humphrey and Moe, R.D. introduced—

S.F. No. 1096: A bill for an act relating to energy; authorizing the Minne-

sota energy agency to administer a program of loans to municipalities for establishing and improving district heating systems; authorizing the issuance of state bonds pursuant to Article XI of the Minnesota constitution; appropriating money; amending Minnesota Statutes 1980, Sections 412.321, Subdivision 1; 412.351; 412.361, Subdivision 3; and 429.021, Subdivision 1; proposing new law coded in Minnesota Statutes, Chapters 116H, 216B, and 465.

Referred to the Committee on Energy and Housing.

Mr. Spear introduced—

S.F. No. 1097: A bill for an act relating to intoxicating liquors; authorizing the sale of distilled spirits in miniature containers; proposing new law coded in Minnesota Statutes, Chapter 340.

Referred to the Committee on Commerce.

Mr. Spear introduced—

S.F. No. 1098: A bill for an act relating to crimes; redefining the crime of indecent exposure; prescribing penalties; proposing new law coded in Minnesota Statutes, Chapter 617; repealing Minnesota Statutes 1980, Section 617.23.

Referred to the Committee on Judiciary.

Mr. Spear introduced—

S.F. No. 1099: A bill for an act relating to corrections; authorizing parole of inmates by majority vote of the corrections board; amending Minnesota Statutes 1980, Section 243.05.

Referred to the Committee on Judiciary.

Mr. Olhoft introduced—

S.F. No. 1100: A bill for an act relating to employment, authorizing school boards to establish a merit pay program for teachers; amending Minnesota Statutes 1980, Section 179.66, by adding a subdivision.

Referred to the Committee on Education.

Messrs. Wegener; Peterson, C.C.; Lessard and Setzepfandt introduced—

S.F. No. 1101: A bill for an act relating to economic development; providing for changes in the small business finance agency law to better provide assistance for small business; making technical changes; amending Minnesota Statutes 1980, Sections 362.50, Subdivisions 4, 5, 9 and 10; 362.52, Subdivisions 2 and 4; 362.53, Subdivisions 11, 12, 15 and 17; repealing Minnesota Statutes 1980, Section 362.50, Subdivisions 6 and 7.

Referred to the Committee on Employment.

Mrs. Stokowski and Mr. Frank introduced—

S.F. No. 1102: A bill for an act relating to unemployment compensation;

abolishing the waiting period prior to receipt of benefits; amending Minnesota Statutes 1980, Sections 268.08, Subdivision 1; and 268.231.

Referred to the Committee on Employment.

Mmes. Stokowski and Lantry introduced—

S.F. No. 1103: A bill for an act relating to nursing homes; requiring the installation of automatic sprinkler systems; authorizing the small business finance agency to make certain loans; amending Minnesota Statutes 1980, Sections 144A.08, Subdivision 1; and 362.52, by adding a subdivision.

Referred to the Committee on Health, Welfare and Corrections.

Messrs. Dahl and Davies introduced—

S.F. No. 1104: A bill for an act relating to the public defender; establishing the board of public defense; transferring public defender responsibilities from the judicial council to the board of public defense; abolishing the judicial council; amending Minnesota Statutes 1980, Sections 611.23; 611.24; 611.26, Subdivisions 1, 2, 3, 4, and 5; proposing new law coded in Minnesota Statutes, Chapter 611; repealing Minnesota Statutes 1980, Section 480.053; and Chapter 483.

Referred to the Committee on Judiciary.

Messrs. Hughes, Dieterich and Rued introduced—

S.F. No. 1105: A bill for an act relating to education; establishing an improved learning program; authorizing the state board of education to approve improved learning programs; providing for a report by the department of education to the legislature; establishing local advisory councils; establishing mandatory and optional program components; providing for state aid to districts establishing an improved learning program; appropriating money; proposing new law coded in Minnesota Statutes, Chapters 3 and 124.

Referred to the Committee on Education.

Mr. Moe, D.M. introduced—

S.F. No. 1106: A bill for an act relating to retirement; clarifying certain ambiguous provisions; correcting certain oversights, inconsistencies, unintended results and erroneous provisions; eliminating certain redundant, obsolete or conflicting provisions; amending Minnesota Statutes 1980, Sections 3.85, Subdivision 3; 3A.01, Subdivisions 2 and 7; 3A.02, Subdivision 1; 3A.04, Subdivisions 1, 1a, 2 and 4; 3A.05; 3A.09; 3A.11, Subdivisions 1 and 2; 3A.12, Subdivision 1; 11A.17, Subdivision 11; 11A.23, Subdivision 2; 15A.083, Subdivision 3; 16A.19; 69.011, Subdivision 1; 69.031, Subdivisions 5 and 6; 69.051, Subdivision 1; 69.77, Subdivisions 1, 1a, 2 and 2a; 69.772, Subdivisions 2 and 2a; 69.773, Subdivision 2; 118.01, Subdivision 11; 136.80, Subdivision 1; 136.81; 136.82; 136.83; 136.85; 136.87, Subdivisions 1 and 2; 275.125, Subdivision 6a; 275.50, Subdivision 5; 352.01, Subdivisions 2A, 11, 19 and 23; 352.029, Subdivision 1; 352.03, Subdivision 6; 352.113, Subdivision 4; 352.115, Subdivision 10; 352.116, Subdivision 3; 352.12, Subdivision 11; 352.22, Subdivisions 2a, 3 and 10; 352.72, Subdivi-



sions 2 and 4; 352.75; 352.85, by adding a subdivision; 352.90; 352.91, Subdivision 2; 352B.02, Subdivision 1; 352B.075, Subdivision 1; 352B.08, Subdivision 2; 352B.11, Subdivision 2; 352B.26, Subdivisions 1 and 3; 352C.031, by adding a subdivision; 352C.04, Subdivision 1; 352D.02, Subdivisions 1 and 2; 352D.04, Subdivision 2; 352D.09, Subdivision 1; 352E.01, Subdivision 1; 353.01, Subdivisions 6, 7 and 10; 353.023; 353.03, Subdivision 1; 353.16; 353.28, Subdivisions 6 and 8; 353.29, Subdivision 4; 353.30, Subdivision 1c; 353.31, Subdivisions 1 and 9; 353.32, Subdivision 1a; 353.33, Subdivision 2; 353.34, Subdivision 3; 353.36, Subdivision 2; 353.37, Subdivisions 1 and 1a; 353.46, Subdivision 1a, and by adding a subdivision; 353.64, by adding a subdivision; 353.656, Subdivision 6; 353.71, Subdivision 1; 354.05, Subdivisions 2, 13, 24, 25 and 26; 354.06, Subdivision 1; 354.07, Subdivision 1; 354.091; 354.092; 354.094; 354.43, Subdivision 4; 354.44, Subdivisions 1a, 4, 5, 6, 7 and 8; 354.47, Subdivision 1; 354.48, Subdivision 10; and by adding a subdivision; 354.50, Subdivision 2; 354.51, Subdivisions 1, 4 and 5; 354.52, Subdivisions 2, 3 and 4; 354.53, Subdivisions 1 and 3; 354.55, Subdivision 11; 354.56; 354.57; 354.60; 354.62, Subdivision 5; 354.66; 354.69; 354A.011, Subdivision 27; 354A.091, Subdivisions 1 and 6; 354A.092; 354A.094, Subdivisions 3, 8, 11, and by adding a subdivision; 354A.31, Subdivision 3; 354A.35, Subdivisions 2 and 3; 355.07; 355.11, Subdivisions 2, 4 and 5; 355.13, Subdivision 2; 355.21, Subdivisions 2 and 4; 355.22; 355.23, Subdivision 1; 355.29, Subdivisions 1, 3 and 4; 355.311, Subdivisions 1, 2 and 4; 355.41, Subdivisions 2, 3, 4 and 7; 355.46, Subdivision 3; 355.71, Subdivision 6; 355.72; 356.18, Subdivision 1; 356.20; 356.215; 356.216; 356.22, Subdivision 1; 356.24; 356.25; 356.32, Subdivision 1; 356.39; 356.45, Subdivision 2; 356.60, Subdivision 1; 422A.01, Subdivision 11; 422A.06, Subdivisions 2, 3 and 5; 422A.08, Subdivisions 1 and 5; 422A.09, Subdivision 3; 422A.101; 422A.11, Subdivision 1; 422A.15, Subdivision 1; 422A.16, Subdivision 8; 422A.22, Subdivision 2; 422A.23, Subdivision 5; 422A.24; 422A.26; 423.075, Subdivision 1; 423.38; 423.801, Subdivision 2; 423.802; 423.805; 423.806, Subdivision 1; 423.807, Subdivisions 1 and 2; 423.808; 423.809, Subdivisions 1 and 2; 423.810, Subdivision 1; 423.815, Subdivision 1; 423A.04; 424A.01, Subdivision 2; 424A.02, Subdivisions 1, 3, 4, 8 and 9; 424A.04; 424A.05, Subdivisions 1 and 3; 458.18, Subdivision 1; 484.61; 484.68, Subdivision 8; 488A.115; 488A.285; 490.101, Subdivision 2; 490.106; 490.107; 490.12, by adding a subdivision; 490.121, Subdivisions 1, 4, 6 and 7; 490.122; 490.123, Subdivision 1; 490.124, Subdivisions 1, 2, 6 and 10; 490.126, Subdivision 1; 490.129; and 490.132; Laws 1955, Chapter 75, Section 12, Subdivision 2, as amended; Laws 1959, Chapter 131, Section 10, Subdivision 1, as amended; Laws 1965, Chapters 446, Section 7, Subdivision 1, as amended; 458, Section 3, Subdivision 2, as amended; and 498, Section 1, Subdivision 1, as amended; Laws 1967, Chapters 575, Section 9, Subdivision 2; 742, Section 2; 775, Section 8, as amended; 798, Section 1, Subdivision 1, as amended; and 815, Section 8, Subdivision 1; Laws 1969, Chapters 526, Section 11, Subdivision 1; 576, Section 1, Subdivision 1, as amended; 641, Section 2, Subdivision 1, as amended; 719, Section 2; 1088, Section 8, Subdivision 1, as amended; and 1105, Section 4; Laws 1971, Chapters 51, Sections 9, as amended, and 10, Subdivision 2, as amended; 114, Section 8, Subdivision 1; 184, Sections 4 and 5; 214, Section 10; 407, Section 1, Subdivisions 2 and 3; 614, Section 2; and 810, Section 7, as amended; Laws 1973, Chapters 304, Section 3, Subdivision 1; and 587, Section 1, Subdivisions 3, as amended, and 5, as amended; Laws 1974, Chapter 251, Section 1, Subdivisions 2 and 3; Laws 1975, Chapter 424, Section 11, as amended; Laws 1976, Chapter 36, Sections 2, 3 and 4; Laws 1977, Chapter 61, Section 5,

Subdivision 2, as amended; and Laws 1978, Chapter 689, Sections 4, Subdivision 2, and 8; proposing new law coded in Minnesota Statutes, Chapters 345, 352, 353, 355 and 356; repealing Minnesota Statutes 1980, Sections 136.86; 352.115, Subdivision 13; 352.1181; 352D.10; 354.09, Subdivisions 1 and 4; 354.41, Subdivisions 3, 6 and 8; 355.302; 355.303; 355.304; 355.305; 355.306; 355.307; 355.308; 355.309; 355.53; 355.73, Subdivisions 5, 6 and 7; 356.18, Subdivision 2; 422A.01, Subdivisions 14, 15 and 16; 422A.08, Subdivisions 2, 3, 4 and 6; 422A.081; 422A.091; 422A.30; 422A.31; 422A.32; 422A.33; 422A.34; 422A.35; 422A.39; 423.075, Subdivision 2; 423.815, Subdivision 3; 487.06; 490.104; 490.127; 490.128; and 490.13; Laws 1969, Chapter 252; Laws 1973, Chapter 481; Laws 1975, Chapter 429; Laws 1978, Chapter 538, Section 6; and Laws 1980, Chapters 342, Section 20; and 509, Section 135.

Referred to the Committee on Public Employees and Pensions.

Mr. Waldorf introduced—

S.F. No. 1107: A bill for an act relating to public welfare; authorizing the commissioner of public welfare to use money in the revolving fund for vocational rehabilitation of the blind for certain purposes; removing the preference given to blind operators of vending machines who have resided in the state for a year; amending Minnesota Statutes 1980, Section 248.07, Subdivision 8.

Referred to the Committee on Health, Welfare and Corrections.

Mr. Chmielewski introduced—

S.F. No. 1108: A bill for an act relating to unemployment compensation; changing the time period for an appeal from a decision of the commissioner; amending Minnesota Statutes 1980, Section 268.10, Subdivision 8.

Referred to the Committee on Employment.

Mr. Chmielewski introduced—

S.F. No. 1109: A bill for an act relating to wild animals; prescribing requirements for carrying firearms under certain conditions; amending Minnesota Statutes 1980, Section 100.29, Subdivisions 3 and 9.

Referred to the Committee on Agriculture and Natural Resources.

Messrs. Wegener, Lessard, Langseth and Spear introduced—

S.F. No. 1110: A bill for an act relating to teachers' retirement funds; creating a study commission.

Referred to the Committee on Public Employees and Pensions.

Mrs. Lantry, Messrs. Stern, Knoll, Belanger and Mrs. Kronebusch introduced—

S.F. No. 1111: A bill for an act relating to public safety; providing for the issuance of driver's licenses and Minnesota identification cards; eliminating the requirement that the licenses and cards be plastic with embossed identification information; amending Minnesota Statutes 1980, Section 171.07, Sub-

divisions 1 and 3.

Referred to the Committee on Transportation.

Mr. Davies introduced—

S.F. No. 1112: A bill for an act relating to costs and attorney fees; providing for recovery of costs and attorney fees by prevailing parties in civil actions against the state and political subdivisions and in administrative contested cases; proposing new law coded in Minnesota Statutes, Chapters 3 and 15.

Referred to the Committee on Judiciary.

Messrs. Dieterich, Stumpf and Petty introduced—

S.F. No. 1113: A bill for an act relating to education; establishing a state board for technical institutes and community colleges; requesting the release of the technical colleges from the University of Minnesota; transferring powers, duties and functions from school districts, school boards, the state board for vocational education, and the state board for community colleges to the state board for technical institutes and community colleges; appropriating money; proposing new law coded as Minnesota Statutes, Chapter 135A.

Referred to the Committee on Education.

Mr. Davies introduced—

S.F. No. 1114: A bill for an act relating to courts; requiring notice to remove a judge to be made on the day set for trial before any other motions; amending Minnesota Statutes 1980, Sections 487.40, Subdivision 2; and 542.16, Subdivision 1.

Referred to the Committee on Judiciary.

Mr. Davies introduced—

S.F. No. 1115: A bill for an act relating to municipal industrial development; stating municipal and redevelopment agency powers; requiring that industrial development projects be located within the territory of the municipality or redevelopment agency; amending Minnesota Statutes 1980, Section 474.03.

Referred to the Committee on Local Government and Urban Affairs.

Mr. Davies introduced—

S.F. No. 1116: A bill for an act relating to municipal industrial development; prohibiting purchase of industrial development bonds by certain benefited parties; amending Minnesota Statutes 1980, Section 474.06.

Referred to the Committee on Local Government and Urban Affairs.

Messrs. Ashbach and Dahl introduced—

S.F. No. 1117: A bill for an act relating to education; authorizing Independent School District No. 621 to transfer the proceeds of certain sales of school

buildings and real property from the debt retirement fund to the capital expenditure fund; authorizing the district to place the proceeds of certain other sales of school buildings and real property into the capital expenditure fund.

Referred to the Committee on Education.

Mr. Moe, R.D., by request, introduced—

S.F. No. 1118: A bill for an act relating to local government; removing a limit on advertising budgets of certain statutory cities; amending Minnesota Statutes 1980, Section 465.56, Subdivision 1; repealing Minnesota Statutes 1980, Section 465.56, Subdivision 2.

Referred to the Committee on Local Government and Urban Affairs.

Messrs. Sikorski, Penny and Nelson introduced—

S.F. No. 1119: A bill for an act relating to education; authorizing school districts to levy the amount of the regional average grandfather levy; providing matching foundation aid; providing foundation aid for the 1982-1983 school year; amending Minnesota Statutes 1980, Sections 124.212, by adding a subdivision; and 275.125, by adding a subdivision.

Referred to the Committee on Education.

Mr. Dicklich introduced—

S.F. No. 1120: A bill for an act relating to retirement; city of Chisholm police and firefighters' relief associations; increasing service pensions and survivors' benefits; amending Laws 1945, Chapter 74, Sections 2, as amended, 3, and 4, as amended; and Laws 1961, Chapter 631, Section 1, as amended.

Referred to the Committee on Public Employees and Pensions.

Mr. Hanson introduced—

S.F. No. 1121: A bill for an act relating to Lake of the Woods Independent School District No. 390; establishing subdistricts for the purpose of funding K-6 programs; granting bonding and levy authority; requiring a referendum.

Referred to the Committee on Education.

Messrs. Frank and Schmitz introduced—

S.F. No. 1122: A bill for an act relating to veterans; changing the method of appointment of the administrator of its Minnesota veterans home; amending Minnesota Statutes 1980, Section 198.06

Referred to the Committee on Veterans' Affairs.

Messrs. Peterson, D.L.; Frederickson; Davis; Rued and Bertram introduced—

S.F. No. 1123: A bill for an act relating to taxation; authorizing the establishment of education savings accounts; providing that contributions to an

account which are used exclusively in connection with the educational expenses of a child are deductible for income tax purposes; providing tax penalties; amending Minnesota Statutes 1980, Sections 48.159, by adding a subdivision; 50.157, by adding a subdivision; 51A.21, by adding a subdivision; 290.09, by adding a subdivision; 290.17, Subdivision 2; and proposing new law coded in Minnesota Statutes, Chapter 52.

Referred to the Committee on Taxes and Tax Laws.

Mr. Frank introduced—

S.F. No. 1124: A bill for an act relating to counties; providing county licensing requirements for building contractors; proposing new law coded in Minnesota Statutes, Chapter 373.

Referred to the Committee on Local Government and Urban Affairs.

Messrs. Belanger, Stern, Hanson, Langseth and Lindgren introduced—

S.F. No. 1125: A bill for an act relating to elections; authorizing use of electronic voting systems for absentee voting; imposing rule-making duties on the secretary of state; proposing new law coded in Minnesota Statutes, Chapter 207.

Referred to the Committee on Elections and Reapportionment.

Mr. Ulland introduced—

S.F. No. 1126: A bill for an act relating to insurance; providing for continued health and accident coverage for former spouses after dissolution of the marriage in certain circumstances; amending Minnesota Statutes 1980, Section 62A.21.

Referred to the Committee on Commerce.

Mr. Ulland introduced—

S.F. No. 1127: A bill for an act relating to forestry; cutting, removal and transportation of decorative trees; amending Minnesota Statutes 1980, Sections 88.642; and 88.648; repealing Minnesota Statutes 1980, Sections 88.643; 88.644; 88.646; and 88.649.

Referred to the Committee on Agriculture and Natural Resources.

Mr. Ulland introduced—

S.F. No. 1128: A bill for an act relating to the operation of state government; abolishing certain boards, commissions, and other bodies; proposing new law coded in Minnesota Statutes, Chapter 15.

Referred to the Committee on Governmental Operations.

Mrs. Brataas, Messrs. Frederick and Lessard introduced—

S.F. No. 1129: A bill for an act relating to taxation; exempting certain airport property of municipalities from the property user tax on exempt prop-

erty; amending Minnesota Statutes 1980, Section 272.01, Subdivision 2.

Referred to the Committee on Taxes and Tax Laws.

Mr. Nichols introduced—

S.F. No. 1130: A bill for an act relating to real estate; directing the release of a certain state owned easement.

Referred to the Committee on Agriculture and Natural Resources.

Messrs. Kroening, Belanger and Stern introduced—

S.F. No. 1131: A bill for an act relating to elections; authorizing changing of certain precinct boundaries; amending Minnesota Statutes 1980, Section 204A.06, Subdivision 1.

Referred to the Committee on Elections and Reapportionment.

Messrs. Hughes, Langseth, Ramstad and Mrs. Stokowski introduced—

S.F. No. 1132: A bill for an act relating to education; allowing area vocational-technical institutes to grant degrees under certain conditions; proposing new law coded in Minnesota Statutes, Chapter 121.

Referred to the Committee on Education.

Messrs. Hughes, Schmitz, Langseth and Frederickson introduced—

S.F. No. 1133: A bill for an act relating to retirement; Minnesota state retirement system; authorizing certain persons to purchase prior service credit.

Referred to the Committee on Public Employees and Pensions.

Mr. Hughes introduced—

S.F. No. 1134: A bill for an act relating to crimes; specifying the crime of mail, telegraph and telephone harassment; prescribing penalties; proposing new law coded in Minnesota Statutes, Chapter 609.

Referred to the Committee on Judiciary.

Messrs. Hughes, Wegener and Mrs. Stokowski introduced—

S.F. No. 1135: A bill for an act relating to education; providing for comprehensive planning by post-secondary institutions; requiring reports; amending Minnesota Statutes 1980, Sections 121.21, by adding a subdivision; 136.14; 136.62, by adding a subdivision; and 136A.16, by adding a subdivision.

Referred to the Committee on Education.

Mr. Hanson introduced—

S.F. No. 1136: A bill for an act relating to education; providing matching funds for capital expenditures made by Lake of the Woods Independent School District No. 390; appropriating money.

Referred to the Committee on Education.

Messrs. Hanson, Lessard and Johnson introduced—

S.F. No. 1137: A bill for an act relating to education; authorizing school districts with more than 1,000 square miles to receive an increased amount of money from the sparsity portion of the replacement levy; amending Minnesota Statutes 1980, Section 124.212, Subdivision 7d.

Referred to the Committee on Education.

Without objection, the Senate reverted to the Order of Business of Motions and Resolutions.

### MOTIONS AND RESOLUTIONS

Mr. Stumpf moved that S. F. No. 678 be withdrawn from the Committee on Local Government and Urban Affairs and re-referred to the Committee on Veterans' Affairs. The motion prevailed.

Mr. Moe, R.D. moved that the Senate do now adjourn until 11:30 a.m., Wednesday, April 1, 1981. The motion prevailed.

Patrick E. Flahaven, Secretary of the Senate